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          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. My name is Michael McMahon, Chairperson of

          4  the New York City Council Committee on Sanitation

          5  and Solid Waste Management, and I welcome you all

          6  this afternoon to this meeting, and I thank everyone

          7  for their patience, especially those who are here to

          8  testify today.

          9                 Unfortunately, with all the hearings

         10  that are going on today, everyone is running a

         11  little bit behind schedule, but I don't want to keep

         12  you here any longer, so we will begin and take your

         13  testimony forthwith.

         14                 As I said, this is the Committee on

         15  Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, and today the

         16  Committee will consider two intros that will improve

         17  the quality of life of our citizens.

         18                 Intro. No. 179, originally introduced

         19  by Council Member Simcha Felder, proposed to extend

         20  the Department of Sanitation's routing system. This

         21  bill would amend the law to make residential routing

         22  hours similar to those currently affecting the

         23  commercial districts of New York City.

         24                 Currently, homeowners can be ticketed

         25  for litter at any time of the day. Under the amended
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          2  law, residential owners could only be ticketed

          3  during the pre-determined periods of the day, which

          4  is the case now with commercial property owners, and

          5  hence the name, Fairness and Fines Law.

          6                 Intro. No. 34, originally introduced

          7  by Council Members Brewer and Avella, will make it

          8  illegal to place stickers on private property. Local

          9  Law 2 of the Year 2003 amended the Administrative

         10  Code to expand the definition of the legal postings

         11  to include stickers that were placed on any public

         12  area, structure or building, but did not cover the

         13  placement of stickers on private property.

         14                 Council members have received

         15  numerous complaints from building owners that

         16  private businesses, every from 24-hour locksmiths to

         17  nightclub announcements placed advertising stickers

         18  on their doors, entranceways, storefronts and

         19  windows without permission.

         20                 This bill now provides a means for

         21  those advertisers to be ticketed and fined.

         22                 On November 28th, 2003, this

         23  Committee held the first hearing concerning both of

         24  these bills. There was no testimony taken in

         25  opposition to the sticker bill, the Administration

                                                            5

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  was the only party to speak in opposition to the

          3  routing bill.

          4                 Today we will hear from

          5  representatives from the Department of Sanitation,

          6  and any members of the public who wish to speak.

          7                 I just want to state that we are

          8  joined by the sponsor of the sticker bill, Council

          9  Member Gale Brewer, from Manhattan, and the sponsor

         10  of the Fairness and Fines Bill, Council Member

         11  Felder. And you'll notice the alliteration there,

         12  it's Felder, fairness and fines, and Freedom For All

         13  Act.

         14                 Before we begin, Council Member

         15  Brewer, would you like to say something?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Mostly I want

         17  to thank you, Mr. Chairman, your wonderful Counsel,

         18  Department of Sanitation. I think that this is a

         19  bill that hopefully will deal with an issue that I'm

         20  sure in your community and in mine, we almost have

         21  in our minds this picture of stickers around our

         22  City on every single piece of private property, so

         23  hopefully with good enforcement and with your good

         24  graces, we'll have a way of dealing with a type of,

         25  I guess sort of graffiti and litter on our buildings
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          2  that we hope to rid the City of.

          3                 So, I thank you very, very much for

          4  being so responsive on this legislation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you. And

          6  thank you for joining us this afternoon.

          7                 Council Member Felder.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I don't have

          9  anything to say, believe it or not, yet. I just want

         10  to thank you for allowing me in.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Well, thank you

         12  very much for joining us.

         13                 Gentlemen, would you please introduce

         14  yourselves and provide us with the testimony, with

         15  the Administration on these two bills. Thank you.

         16                 I'm sorry, let me just state I'm also

         17  joined by my colleagues, James Gennaro, from Queens;

         18  Andrew Lanza from Staten Island; and the co-counsels

         19  to the Committee Andrew Sterrer and Carmen Cognetta.

         20                 Thank you very much for your

         21  patience, gentlemen.

         22                 MR. SULLIVAN: I'm Bernard Sullivan,

         23  Chief of Cleaning Operations.

         24                 MR. GERLICH: Ronald Gerlich, Special

         25  Assistant to the First Deputy Commissioner.
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          2                 MR. KUZNITZ: I'm Todd Kuznitz,

          3  Director of Enforcement of the Department of

          4  Sanitation.

          5                 MR. GERLICH: Good afternoon, Chairman

          6  McMahon and members of the Committee on Solid Waste

          7  Management. I am Ronald Gerlich, Special Assistant

          8  to the First Deputy Commissioner for Operations for

          9  the New York City Department of Sanitation.

         10                 I am here this afternoon with Bernard

         11  Sullivan, Chief of Cleaning Operations, and Todd

         12  Kuznitz, Director of Enforcement, to discuss two

         13  bills under consideration by the Committee.

         14                 The Department previously testified

         15  on similar bills before this Committee at a hearing

         16  in November 2003.

         17                 Intro. No. 34 expands the act of

         18  "defacement" under Section 10-117 of the City's

         19  Administrative Code to include affixing, attaching

         20  or placing a sticker or decal on any public or

         21  private building or structure. It also creates a

         22  rebuttal presumption similar to that created under

         23  the City's illegal poster law, and holds telephone

         24  answering service companies responsible for the

         25  violation whenever the sticker or decal contains no
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          2  identifying information.

          3                 Intro. No. 34 also enhances the

          4  Department's enforcement authority, by empowering

          5  the Sanitation Commissioner to subpoena telephone

          6  company records to determine the identity of the

          7  parties responsible for the violation and designates

          8  each unlawful placement of a sticker or decal as a

          9  separate offense.

         10                 Complaints by elected officials and

         11  the public concerning the unauthorized placement of

         12  stickers and decals on private property are on the

         13  rise.

         14                 This quality of life offense reduces

         15  property values of buildings and creates a blighted

         16  appearance in communities.

         17                 Although Local Law 2 of 2003 expanded

         18  the act of illegal posting to include stickers under

         19  the City's illegal poster law, Local Law 2 does not

         20  apply to stickers attached to privately-owned

         21  property or structures.

         22                 Creating a separate civil offense for

         23  the placement of stickers or decals on all

         24  properties will deter individuals from engaging in

         25  this unlawful act, protect private and public
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          2  buildings from defacement and preserve the quality

          3  of life in communities that have been negatively

          4  impacted by the posting of stickers and decals.

          5                 Intro. No. 179 proposes to expand the

          6  current enforcement routing system to all premises

          7  Citywide.

          8                 Under the current routing system,

          9  Sanitation enforcement agents patrol commercial

         10  street blocks on two pre-determined one-hour periods

         11  during the day and issue summonses to commercial

         12  establishments, for failing to keep clean the

         13  sidewalk areas around the premises and an area

         14  extending 18 inches from the curb in front of their

         15  store into the streets.

         16                 The Department implemented the

         17  enforcement routing program to benefit merchants

         18  occupying commercial buildings by restricting the

         19  hours during which merchants will be held

         20  accountable for dirty sidewalks and 18-inch

         21  infractions.

         22                 Since its inception in 1990, business

         23  communities across the City have strongly supported

         24  enforcement routing and the program has been largely

         25  successful.
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          2                 The Department initiatives promote

          3  the cleanliness of sidewalk and public areas;

          4  however, the Department opposes expanding

          5  enforcement routing to residential premises.

          6                 Extending the enforcement routing

          7  system to residential premises would be problematic

          8  from both a manpower and cost perspective.

          9                 The Department currently has 100

         10  civilian enforcement agents and 56 Sanitation police

         11  officers that enforce sanitation code provisions

         12  Citywide.

         13                 The Department's Bureau of Cleaning

         14  Collection uniformed supervisors also issue

         15  summonses for Sanitation code violations when they

         16  are in the field monitoring collection and

         17  mechanical broom activities.

         18                 As the Committee knows, each year the

         19  Department offers employee work shifts and

         20  collection times to reflect a change in the winter

         21  and summer seasons. Together, with operational

         22  changes, due to holidays, snow and other

         23  emergencies, unlike the availability and staffing of

         24  personnel assigned to routing enforcement and

         25  commercial areas, the Department would have an
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          2  insufficient number of enforcement personnel to

          3  enforce the law daily in residential areas.

          4                 This would require the Department to

          5  assign additional uniformed personnel on overtime

          6  and might require the hiring of personnel to comply

          7  with this Council mandate.

          8                 For these reasons, the Department is

          9  opposed to Intro. No. 179. We would now be happy to

         10  answer your questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you very

         12  much, Special Assistant Gerlich.

         13                 And the gentlemen with you, do you

         14  have testimony, or you're here to lend support?

         15                 MR. JUZNITZ: Support.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Support.

         17                 Thank you for your testimony, and

         18  thank you for all of the work that the people who

         19  work at the Department do for the people of the City

         20  of New York everyday.

         21                 Just briefly, on Intro. No. 34, the

         22  sticker bill, and I think that seems to be the less

         23  controversial of the two items we're considering

         24  today. The law that we passed in 2003, Local Law 2,

         25  which allowed for the presumption of ownership or

                                                            12

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  responsibility when a name or a phone number could

          3  be fined, and allowed for an individual fine for

          4  each act of postering, if you will; has that been an

          5  effective tool for you? And if so, can you explain

          6  how?

          7                 MR. GERLICH: Very much so on the

          8  postering law.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Can you pull

         10  that a little closer to you, Mr. Gerlich.

         11                 MR. GERLICH: Very much so on the

         12  postering law, it's been very helpful. It seems to

         13  have an impact and it's helping us out, especially

         14  all of these music companies and they're really

         15  feeling the impact of it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Do you have any

         17  numbers available as to what type of amount of fines

         18  have been issued since the passage of a law, or is

         19  that something you could provide us after the

         20  hearing?

         21                 MR. GERLICH: I could, sir, but not at

         22  this time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay.

         24                 MR. GERLICH: I will be able to get

         25  that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, I am going

          3  to ask Counsel to follow up on that information just

          4  so we can know.

          5                 And what we're doing now is saying,

          6  look, it's illegal to put posters or stickers on

          7  public property, now we're saying, look, it's also

          8  illegal to put that on private property as well, and

          9  creating those same presumptions, and making each

         10  individual act a fineable offense of what, $75; is

         11  that the amount?

         12                 MR. SULLIVAN: Seventy-five dollars.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Is that what'

         14  we're doing?

         15                 MR. SULLIVAN: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And that's

         17  something that the Department supports as well.

         18                 This is, especially in Manhattan, the

         19  locksmiths are the ones who are notorious at doing

         20  this, right? Putting this on everybody's door. Okay.

         21                 And now the second bill, which seeks

         22  to put fairness in fines throughout the City of New

         23  York, and I notice in your testimony you didn't

         24  address the issue of fairness or how to keep the

         25  City more cleanly. It seemed to be, the opposition
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          2  seemed to be based solely, and if I misspeak let me

          3  know, solely in the cost perhaps operationally that

          4  it may cost more for enforcement.

          5                 Does the Department have a position

          6  in terms of the fairness of this law which says,

          7  look -- and think about it, especially in a mixed

          8  use street where you have commercial premises, and

          9  then you have a residence right next door, which is

         10  quite common throughout the City, the commercial

         11  tenant or business only has to deal with the routing

         12  certain times of the day, and enforcement is much

         13  more predictable and management of cleanliness is

         14  easier, too, because you know if you sweep twice a

         15  day you're going to stay on top of it, whereby if

         16  you can get a ticket any time of the day where the

         17  residential can now, it's kind of hard to stay on

         18  top of it because you can clean, the wind can come

         19  and blow something and you probably could be subject

         20  for a fine.

         21                 Does the Department have a position

         22  in terms of fairness?

         23                 MR. GERLICH: Yes. We think it's very

         24  impractical for the home-owner, especially single

         25  one-, two-, and three-family homeowners who are not

                                                            15

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  between the commercial building, and they're not

          3  home, they're at work. For us to come by at certain

          4  times during the day and mandate them to be out

          5  there sweeping, we don't find that practical at all.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I mean, they

          7  could get a ticket during that time now anyway, but

          8  they could also get it, basically they could get it

          9  24 hours a day; am I correct?

         10                 MR. GERLICH: They can get it 24 hours

         11  a day.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So, if we pass

         13  no law, they could get a ticket during an

         14  impractical time as well. The point is, in relation

         15  to the commercial property owner, who has a certain

         16  amount of predictability, and it's easier to manage

         17  the situation, why shouldn't home-owners have that

         18  same predictability and fairness?

         19                 MR. GERLICH: Well, if the commercial

         20  business is open when we come during the routing

         21  time, there's usually a responsible person that we

         22  can talk to and educate or give them a summons. With

         23  a homeowner, if they're at work, we wouldn't be able

         24  to educate them.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Well, what do
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          2  you do now?

          3                 MR. GERLICH: We don't usually write

          4  to the one-, two-, and three-family home unless

          5  we're sent out there on a complaint.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So, if you are

          7  sent on a complaint, you would then have to write a

          8  ticket, even if it were during the day?

          9                 MR. GERLICH: Well, we would evaluate

         10  it. If the complaint warranted the summons, yes. If

         11  not, if we could talk to the people we like to use

         12  discretion.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And you talk

         14  about resources, but couldn't you do your routing

         15  like this, and say, all right, in this district,

         16  District 1, the North Shore of Staten Island, we're

         17  going to do commercial fines between nine and eleven

         18  in the morning, and we're going to do residential

         19  fines and enforcement from four to six at night;

         20  would that be conceivable under this law?

         21                 MR. GERLICH: Well, I don't know the

         22  hours of work. To me, not everybody would be home.

         23  Us drivers, Sanitation, we all work different hours.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Right. So that

         25  exists now under the law.
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          2                 MR. GERLICH: And I don't enforce it

          3  now.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So, would this

          5  law make you enforce it?

          6                 MR. GERLICH: Yes, it does. It

          7  basically mandates us to --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: As I understood

          9  it. It says right now, look, right now there's a law

         10  that you have to keep your property clean, right?

         11  And as I understand it, and you tell me if I'm

         12  wrong, the way I understand the law now is that when

         13  you go out to enforce that cleanliness, when you do

         14  it in commercial property, you can only give a fine

         15  during the preset routing times, so that there's a

         16  level of predictability and then a store-owner

         17  knows, look, they come to my district from nine to

         18  eleven, I know I better get out there at eight

         19  o'clock and clean and then I'll be safe and then

         20  tomorrow I can do it again at eight o'clock. And the

         21  idea was that, you know, a guy who cleans his lot at

         22  eight o'clock in the morning, and then goes inside

         23  and starts selling the hammentashen, or the

         24  whatever, doesn't get a ticket at three o'clock in

         25  the afternoon, even though he cleaned in the
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          2  morning. That was the intent of the original law.

          3                 MR. GERLICH: True.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay.

          5                 So, I think what we're trying to say

          6  now, in all fairness to home-owners, they should

          7  have the same level of predictability and fairness,

          8  which is I know that -- especially I live in an area

          9  where there is a lot of commercial traffic and maybe

         10  there's a litter problem, that I know that if I get

         11  out every day and clean my lot that I can only be

         12  ticketed during a certain period of the day, and we

         13  seek to put fairness into that.

         14                 I don't understand the point that it

         15  would force you to enforce the law. Is that the way

         16  that the Department is reading this law, that you

         17  must single out during this time period and enforce

         18  the law? Or that you may go out during this time

         19  period and enforce the law?

         20                 MR. GERLICH: I'm reading it that the

         21  home-owner has to be there to clean his area between

         22  those times.

         23                 If I show up during those times, and

         24  there's litter in front of his property or area, I

         25  would think I could take action.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But the law now

          3  is it has to be in effect be cleaned all the time.

          4  Under the law now you could go at four o'clock in

          5  the afternoon, you can go at six o'clock in the

          6  morning, and write a fine for a violation, right?

          7                 MR. GERLICH: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Is your point

          9  that when your officers go out, before they give a

         10  fine to the home-owner, first they ring the bell and

         11  say clean this up or I'm going to give you a fine?

         12                 MR. GERLICH: That's how we would do

         13  it. On a complaint, if we see the home-owner and it

         14  wasn't an egregious violation, we would talk to them

         15  and try to educate them. If it was really bad matted

         16  down and everything, they would use discretion. We

         17  don't go after home-owners just for the sake of

         18  writing a summons, we try to educate them.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: This bill

         20  wouldn't take away that discretion, would it?

         21                 MR. GERLICH: To me it would take away

         22  that discretion. I mean, then I would go there for

         23  no reason at all, if you never answered your door --

         24  I don't know how this bill would be practical for

         25  the home-owner or for us. What's the sense of me
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          2  going there if you're not there. Or you're telling

          3  me I have a routing time but you don't have to be

          4  home.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Well, I mean,

          6  how is the law enforced now with commercial

          7  businesses? If you have, if you send an agent out to

          8  a certain neighborhood, a commercial district, and

          9  if they go and enforce the 18-inch law, do they

         10  write tickets for violations, or do they first try

         11  to counsel everybody in litter management?

         12                 MR. GERLICH: They would write the

         13  summons. They go in and the difference is, there's a

         14  responsible person on the premise. The premise is

         15  always open, and we talk to them. And they're aware

         16  of the routing program and they know the hours we're

         17  coming, we don't sneak up on them.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And how would

         19  that be different for residential?

         20                 MR. GERLICH: It wouldn't be

         21  different, except that the residential homeowner

         22  wouldn't be home most of the time; how would it

         23  work?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Do you give

         25  tickets to commercial operations that are not open
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          2  that have litter on their sidewalk?

          3                 MR. GERLICH: No. Not for litter on

          4  the sidewalk, no.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: You only give

          6  tickets if the business is open?

          7                 MR. GERLICH: Yes, during the routing

          8  time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Now I get your

         10  point, okay.

         11                 So, your point is then that for

         12  residential properties, you would be ticketing a

         13  residence even though someone may not be home. Isn't

         14  that done now?

         15                 I mean, we have reports from

         16  homeowners throughout the City who receive tickets

         17  whether or not they're home. I mean, am I incorrect

         18  in that?

         19                 MR. GERLICH: Well, we have the

         20  authority to do that, but we don't enforce it.

         21                 We go only on the complaint. We don't

         22  go to home-owners now. We don't look for violations.

         23  If it's there we'll try to talk to somebody. If they

         24  make an attempt, you know, we'll use discretion. If

         25  they continue to make their area dirty, then they'll
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          2  receive a summons.

          3                 We don't go looking in residential

          4  areas right now for the home-owners to enforce the

          5  law, as you would have to with the routing time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So the way

          7  you're reading the law, this would force you to

          8  enforce the law in residential areas?

          9                 MR. GERLICH: True.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And in

         11  commercial areas you only enforce the law if the

         12  business is open?

         13                 MR. GERLICH: For sidewalk and the

         14  curb summonses, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. All right.

         16                 Council Member Felder.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         18  much for coming. And I do have a few questions.

         19                 First of all, this is a set-up

         20  question. Ready? I want to know whether you believe

         21  that tickets are issued to raise revenue for the

         22  City?

         23                 MR. GERLICH: No, I don't.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Good. That was

         25  the right answer.
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          2                 I challenge anybody who works for the

          3  City to say they are.

          4                 If that's the case, I'm going to

          5  start backwards. I looked at the analysis about what

          6  this will cost the City. It shows that as a result

          7  of this bill, the City will lose a million dollars

          8  in revenue, which is wonderful, in my mind.

          9                 Now, I'm going to start from the

         10  beginning. First of all, at the last hearing, Mr.

         11  Chairman, we had testimony that was given by the

         12  Director of the Bureau of Cleaning and Collection,

         13  and since I like him I won't mention his name. In

         14  his testimony he says it would be an unfair burden

         15  on property owners, especially those residing in

         16  one-, two-, three-family homes whose occupants work

         17  during the day and unable to monitor their property

         18  during the daytime when residential enforcement

         19  routing would occur.

         20                 I see that in your testimony you

         21  deleted that entirely. Thank God. Because it never

         22  made sense. And I think that the question that the

         23  Chair was getting at was that at this time, whatever

         24  you're talking about is going on all day long, and I

         25  brought -- I shouldn't say I brought, my wonderful
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          2  staff brought samples of tickets which you can, you

          3  know, get a taste of, if you want afterwards, some

          4  which were issued seven in the morning, which is I'm

          5  sure times that you would be educating these people

          6  about cleanliness, and people at four o'clock. You

          7  have no control over that entirely now. Right now

          8  the way the system works is that 24 hours a day a

          9  home-owner can get a ticket. That's the way it is.

         10  And it's not your rule, that's the way it existed.

         11                 Ten years ago the same system really

         12  existed with regard to commercial enterprises, and

         13  the City saw fit to stop because it didn't make

         14  sense, and what the Chair and the Committee is

         15  trying to do is fix the other half of it for

         16  home-owners.

         17                 Now, you know, it depends, this is a

         18  smorgasbord, I don't know what you want to taste

         19  first. I have my mother's tickets, four tickets, I

         20  have four tickets issued to one person in the same

         21  day, starting in the morning throughout the day, and

         22  I'm sure somebody was trying to educate them. The

         23  guy was an idiot, probably couldn't get educated, so

         24  they issued four tickets. I have a whole slew of

         25  things. The purpose of this bill is not to compel
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          2  the Sanitation Department to do what you suggested,

          3  it's not to say that there's a routing owl from nine

          4  to ten in the morning. Now, I'm making a suggestion,

          5  it's not perfect. It could be that everybody in this

          6  whole City would be obligated to keep their place

          7  clean so that between nine and ten in the morning,

          8  which is usually when people go to work, a little

          9  earlier, if somebody walks by they would know that

         10  the place is clean. And if not, then there's a

         11  presumption made that it wasn't kept clean. Right

         12  now that goes on 24 hours a day. Back to some of the

         13  other things you mentioned.

         14                 I'm promise this is not a filibuster,

         15  I'll give you a chance to say whatever you want.

         16                 In terms of education and in terms of

         17  complaint-driven, many of the summonses that the

         18  Department issues have nothing to do with

         19  complaints. Many of the summonses that the

         20  Department issues has to do with the rating system,

         21  and if whatever I said is not true, again, I would

         22  be delighted for you to tell me I don't know what

         23  I'm talking about so that I've heard that many

         24  times, but I'll argue with you about that. But to

         25  say that all the summonses, or that summonses issued
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          2  in the City are complaint-driven, just is not so.

          3  Because the City does rating of neighborhoods, and

          4  at the last hearing, Mr. Chairman, we discussed the

          5  fact that the same blocks have been rated for the

          6  last 25 years.

          7                 So, for example, if Community Board

          8  14 has a terrible rating, they could be going down

          9  my block, which is maybe the filthiest block in the

         10  whole neighborhood, and they're still the filthiest

         11  block in the whole neighborhood, and it would still

         12  show that the rating is lousy in Community Board 14.

         13                 To this day, no one in this City

         14  knows which blocks have been rated in community

         15  boards that designate them to be dirty

         16  neighborhoods. And we have asked at the last meeting

         17  that every 25 years or so the City should decide to

         18  pick another block, but until then, at this time you

         19  speak to community board members and other people in

         20  government, they will tell you that summonses are

         21  issued without complaint driven, unless you mean

         22  complaint of them being dirty.

         23                 So, to make a long story short, I

         24  believe very much, I have confidence in you and your

         25  Department, when you go out during the McMahon,
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          2  Felder or Felder McMahon, it doesn't matter, you can

          3  get all the credits for this bill because I think

          4  it's wonderful, and I think the Mayor is going to

          5  love this bill, because the Mayor agrees, has to

          6  agree, and I think he believes that the purpose of

          7  ticketing is not to make money, it's to make sure

          8  that people do the right thing --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And if I can

         10  just say, Council Member Felder, as to what the

         11  Mayor thinks on this, we're relying on you 100

         12  percent.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I thank you.

         14  You shut me up. I have to think about how I should

         15  respond to that. Give me a minute or two.

         16                 But the point is that if we create a

         17  bill where there are routing hours for home-owners,

         18  the purpose of the bill is to do two things:

         19  Primarily to make sure that people do what they're

         20  supposed to do, which is to keep their place clean.

         21                 Now, there are some people that don't

         22  do it. They will know that every once in awhile, it

         23  may not be January, it may be February, it may be

         24  April, they won't know, your agents will come in.

         25  You don't have to hire additional personnel, you
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          2  just have to do enforcement sporadically, so people

          3  know that they have to keep their places clean.

          4                 So, I don't see the additional need

          5  for manpower at all, and I think that your

          6  Department saw fit ten years ago to do this for

          7  commercial enterprises, and at that time, I'm

          8  willing to bet, were you involved with that at that

          9  time?

         10                 MR. GERLICH: No, I wasn't.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I wasn't

         12  either. I'm willing to bet, I'm willing to bet that

         13  your predecessors sat up here and said it's not a

         14  good idea for the same reasons, and now we know that

         15  it is. And I believe that this is a wonderful,

         16  wonderful bill. It's fair. It makes it fair to

         17  homeowners. It does not compel you in any way -- Mr.

         18  Chairman, does it say anywhere in the bill that they

         19  must issue a ticket during the routing hour time?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I haven't been

         21  sworn to testify, but it's my understanding that,

         22  no, it is not a mandatory enforcement. Like any law

         23  that presents a fine, or administration of the law

         24  doesn't mandate enforcement, it only limits when

         25  enforcement can occur so that there's a sense of
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          2  fairness and predictability that homeowners will now

          3  have that businesses currently enjoy.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I appreciate

          5  that. And I think, just to conclude, you're going to

          6  come back to thank the Chairman for this bill. Why?

          7  Because people will not feel like they're being

          8  smacked over the head all day long. Like the example

          9  I have where one guy gets four tickets. People will

         10  feel that there's a certain amount of fairness and

         11  equity, that if they go out and sweep their

         12  sidewalks at eight and nine in the morning, even if

         13  there's a strip, a commercial strip next door, they

         14  don't have to worry that two or three hours later

         15  somebody is going to be around ticketing them.

         16                 I appreciate -- this does not in any

         17  way distract from all the wonderful work that the

         18  Department does, so, I just want to make that clear.

         19  We appreciate everything. I want to make sure my

         20  garbage gets picked up. We appreciate all the other

         21  wonderful work. This stinks, and we hope to get rid

         22  of it. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you,

         24  Council Member Felder.

         25                 And we've been joined by our
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          2  colleague Jose Serrano, from the Bronx, and John Liu

          3  from Queens.

          4                 No other questions. I want to say, I

          5  don't have this as a Felder McMahon, but I have this

          6  as a Felder Bloomberg Bill, is that -- that was a

          7  joke.

          8                 Thank you, gentlemen, very much.

          9  Thank you. Thanks for coming.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I want to

         11  thank the Chair for concluding it. It didn't give

         12  them the chance to respond to my questions, and I

         13  appreciate it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: No, I apologize.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No, I don't

         16  know if you wanted them to.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I thought it was

         18  a rhetorical question. I'm sorry.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: You know what?

         20  I like that better. Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I'm very sorry.

         22  If you have a response while standing, please.

         23                 Okay, our last witness is Frank

         24  Ricci, from the Rent Stabilization Association.

         25                 MR. RICCI: Thank you, Chairman
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          2  McMahon, members of the Committee.

          3                 I know you want to vote here and some

          4  people have to go to other hearings. I will be

          5  brief. I think on Intro. No. 34, there is not much

          6  to say that hasn't been said already.

          7                 I'm sorry. My name is Frank Ricci.

          8  I'm the Director of Government Affairs for the Rent

          9  Stabilization Association. We represent about 25,000

         10  building owners in New York City, primarily three

         11  units or more around the City, some of the largest

         12  buildings of the City, as well as the number of

         13  small ones.

         14                 As I was saying, on Intro. No. 34, I

         15  don't think there's any need for me to comment,

         16  other than to say that we support that bill. It is a

         17  nuisance, it's like graffiti, the bane of the

         18  existence of a lot of building owners and supers

         19  around the City so we fully support that.

         20                 I just want to make a few comments on

         21  Intro. 179. We also support that bill. If I can pick

         22  up where Councilman Felder just left off a minute

         23  ago, about who was around back in 1989 and what the

         24  Sanitation's Department position was on commercial

         25  routing, I never thought I would be in the position
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          2  of saying this, I looked around the room, I think I

          3  was the only person here who was around in 1989. I

          4  testified then on behalf of RSA and I was also a

          5  member of the Borough President Solid Waste Advisory

          6  Board. We had been urging the Sanitation Department

          7  for years to do something like this for all

          8  commercial and residential properties, when it

          9  seemed apparent that the Council was going to pass

         10  the bill, the capitulated, they did a pilot program,

         11  there is a pilot bill for two years for commercial

         12  properties. The Sanitation Department was opposed to

         13  that. The Assistant Commissioner at the time, his

         14  name was John Doherty, he was the one who was very

         15  much opposed to it, but I can tell you that two

         16  years later, Sanitation Department was very much in

         17  favor of it, and I even have comments in my file

         18  somewhere where they mentioned that it was a very

         19  good management tool for their enforcement officers.

         20                 So, I believe that once we pass this

         21  bill, you will get the same results.

         22                 The only other two things I want to

         23  say about that bill is as long as the Sanitation

         24  Department has this aversion of finding the people

         25  who actually throw the litter on the street, and
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          2  this has been a running argument for as long as I've

          3  been in this business where they can give you every

          4  excuse in the world about how difficult it is to

          5  enforce it, they don't want to go after people who

          6  they see actually throwing litter on the street,

          7  they have to get identification, they serve

          8  summonses, et cetera, et cetera, then this is the

          9  only fair way to enforce the sanitation system as

         10  far as home-owners go.

         11                 The final point I wanted to make is

         12  that what the previous speakers were saying about,

         13  you know, in home-owner districts they try and

         14  educate and don't enforce. There are huge parts of

         15  this City that their agents have no idea whether

         16  it's a one-, two-, or three-family brownstone or a

         17  six-, or ten-family brownstone. They walk down the

         18  street, they come up a commercial strip, they turn

         19  the corner and they go down the street, and if they

         20  see litter, they write the violation. They don't ask

         21  to see, they don't check to see how many doorbells

         22  are there or mailboxes or anything, they just write

         23  the ticket and they keep going. So, I really took --

         24  didn't really buy the prior testimony on that.

         25                 So, for all the above reasons, I just
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          2  wanted to go on the record to say that the Rent

          3  Stabilization Association is in favor of both of

          4  these bills.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Ricci. And just so my colleagues know, is this the

          7  first time that you've testified in favor of

          8  legislation under this new Council since 2001?

          9                 MR. RICCI: I'm glad you added the

         10  part about under this new Council. I believe it is.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you.

         12                 MR. RICCI: But hopefully not the last

         13  time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And just a brief

         15  comment, the point you make about the actual act of

         16  littering, as opposed to the, sort of the victim of

         17  littering, that's the point we continue to make with

         18  the Department. In fact, when we were asked to

         19  increase littering fines, we could only do it for

         20  those who were actually in the act of littering, not

         21  those whose property gets affected by the littering.

         22  Certainly we need to encourage property owners,

         23  commercial and residential, to clean their property,

         24  but what we seek to do here is to do it as fairly

         25  for residential owners as we do it for commercial
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          2  now, and with the sense of predictability, as well.

          3  We thank you very much for your testimony.

          4                 MR. RICCI: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, Counsel

          6  advises me that Council Members Jackson and Weprin

          7  are in Albany trying to convince Governor Pataki to

          8  give the City more money, and that's a good thing,

          9  especially for education. And Council Member Yassky

         10  is at another meeting, we will keep the vote open

         11  for him. And at this time I would ask the clerk to

         12  call the vote.

         13                 The Chair recommends yes on both.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Aye on both

         18  179 and 34. Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Serrano.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Aye on both.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lanza.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of four in

         24  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         25  abstentions, both items are adopted. Council
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          2  Members, please sign the Committee report.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Council Member

          5  Yassky.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Aye on both,

          7  proudly.

          8                 Mr. Chair, may I be excused to

          9  explain my remark?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Council Member

         11  Yassky, how do you vote?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I vote aye on

         13  both, and I just want to thank you for bringing

         14  forward both these important initiatives. Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you.

         17                 And I hereby close the meeting. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 1:58 p.m.)
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